Time Commenced

The meeting commenced at 4.00pm.

1. <u>Attendance and Apologies</u>

Attendance

Cr Phil Meehan Councillor Cr Stephen McCarthy Councillor

Margaret Hain Ballina Day View Club Mary O'Brien Lighthouse Day Club

David Felsch Ballina Peninsula Residents Association

Stephen Wills Ballina Bears Cricket Club

George Young Ballina Lions Club Lyn Davidson Ballina CWA

Fiona Folan Ballina Environment Society
Marilyn McIntosh Ballina Evening View Club

Ross Pickering Ballina & District Citizens & Ratepayers

Association

Martin Corkery Ballina Chamber of Commerce & Ballina Retail

Action Group

Council Staff in Attendance

John Truman Group Manager Civil Services
Joanne Cordery Secretary - Civil Services Group

Apologies

Cr Nathan Willis Councillor

Michael Young Ballina Chamber of Commerce & Ballina Retail

Action Group

Narelle Besseling Ballina Chamber of Commerce & Ballina Retail

Action Group

Cr David Wright Mayor

2. Resignations/Changes to Memberships

The information in the staff report was noted.

3. Declarations of Interest

Nil

4. <u>Deputations</u>

Nil

5. <u>Confirmation of the Minutes of the Previous Meeting</u>

The Minutes of the previous meeting held on 14 March, 2017, including the additional comments from David Felsch were accepted as a true and correct record.

David Felsch/Mary O'Brien

Ballina Shire Council Page 1 of 11

6. **General Business**

Nil

7. <u>Business Arising from Previous Minutes</u>

Parking Issues in Fox Street Ballina (near Ex-Servicemans Home)

The information in the staff report was noted.

Maintenance Issues in Fox Street

The information in the staff report was noted.

Request to inspect Vegetation at Southern End of Sharpes Beach Carpark

The information in the staff report was noted.

Request for A Frame Signage on Footpath in River Street by CWA

The information in the staff report was noted and Lyn Davidson thanked staff.

Request for repairs on Gazebo in Commemoration Park

The information in the staff report was noted.

Floodgate Replacement Program

George Young asked if he could view the program.

John Truman advised that at this stage it was a funding item in the Delivery Program for 2017/18 and that the first project was the Burns Point Ferry Road.

8. <u>Council Documents on Exhibition</u>

The list of previously advertised documents was noted by the Committee.

9. Business Without Notice

i) Update on Fripp Oval Sports

Stephen Wills updated the Committee on the progress of the building improvements. He also advised that the Club is yet to be advised of the outcome of the application to the Public Reserve Management Fund for the Fripp Oval fence replacement program.

Ballina Shire Council Page 2 of 11

ii) Public Garbage Bins

Stephen Wills discussed his concerns in relation to the smell and condition of bins placed around public amenities particularly during the holidays.

John Truman replied that during school holidays additional collection services are provided for the busy public areas. A program is already in place where our drivers can report bin issues and the bin can be collected and serviced. The placement of bins is continually monitored to ensure we achieve the best balance between providing a service while not encouraging illegal dumping. Our Environmental Health section has partnered with the EPA and the NSW Government to implement an illegal dumping program.

iii) Richmond Room

Mary O'Brien thanked Council for the sun curtains in the Richmond Room.

iv) Ferry Concession Tickets Trial

David Felsch thanked Council for the trial concession tickets for the ferry. David asked for the minutes to note his opinion the Council will not lose revenue by offering this discount as he expects an increase in season ticket sales.

v) Boat Ramp South Ballina

David Felsch thanked Council for the work they have put into the grant for the boat ramp in South Ballina.

John Truman confirmed that the grant approval was for a ramp and carpark, however Council was investigating the option to include a pontoon in the project.

vi) <u>Ferry</u>

David Felsch reiterated his comments from the previous meeting regarding the travel speed for the Ferry and indicated his opinion on the recent motor failure was due to engine glazing from the engine operating at low capacity. He also expressed a view that the maintenance of the ferry would be improved if it was undertaken by a diesel mechanic.

John Truman advised Mr Felsch that he had emailed a response to him prior to the meeting regarding his additional comments to the minutes of the previous meeting. A copy of that email is attached for the information of the Committee.

Ballina Shire Council Page 3 of 11

John advised the recent issue was the only failure of its type since the procedure for travel speed was introduced more than a decade ago. As the reasons for the failure are not certain, and having regard to the costs and risks to change the engine, Council does not propose to take any further action at this point in time. John also noted the engine provided power for the electrical and hydraulic systems as well as the drive power and therefore any change needs to be carefully considered and justified.

John also advised that Council would review its position if failures become systematic or further professional advice supported the change.

David Felsch also suggested that instead of a dog clutch that a torque converter should be used on the ferry. John Truman advised that he would provide a response to this suggestion.

vii) Polehouses in South Ballina

David Felsch discussed with the Committee the issue in South Ballina with houses built on pads versus stilt houses.

John Truman advised that a meeting was being held next week with Pat Carney and that Mr Felsch had been invited to attend. This issue relates to Floodplain Management Risks and Council's Floodplain Development Control Plan.

A report is being prepared for the May 2017 Council meeting.

viii) 848 River Drive - Road Pavement

David Felsch advised that he was waiting on a further response regarding the road settlement at this location.

John Truman to provide a response.

ix) <u>Bicycle Waiting Area – South Side of Ferry</u>

David Felsch advised that he had met with Council's Road Safety Officer regarding the bicycle waiting area and was still waiting on a response.

John Truman advised that he had previously inspected this site with David and advised that a large outlay of capital works funding was required to make the changes requested. John Truman will check the Bike Plan, recently adopted by Council, to see if this proposal was included.

Ballina Shire Council Page 4 of 11

x) Lions Park - Path

Ross Pickering advised that the concrete path located in Lions Park was still in poor condition and the roots from the trees were causing the path's deterioration and the footpath has been lifted causing a trip hazard. He asked could the Council staff reinspect the path particularly near the second tree.

Phil Meehan suggested that further investigation into the ownership of the path might be required as this section of the path may not be under the control of Council.

John Truman discussed the process taken by staff when inspecting paths and advised he would request staff to investigate again.

xi) Shark Nets

Fiona Folan asked if Council had requested the DPI to keep the shark nets over winter.

Phil Meehan replied that at this stage, Council had not taken any position other than to support the current trial.

John Truman advised that the DPI would be removing the nets in June and would be conducting community consultation and publishing a report in mid July. Council will consider that report and determine its next position. It was also advised that the DPI would be implementing the use of an additional 20 drumlines.

xii) Winter Olympic Training Centre

Fiona Folan discussed the documents on public exhibition for this project and advised that when the pool was to be emptied it will be discharged into the reticulated sewer system. It was asked if Council could investigate this matter.

John Truman advised the impacts of the proposal on Council's infrastructure will be assessed by Council's Engineers and that a Trade Waste Application is required for this facility to discharge to our sewer.

Ms Folan also advised that at 5.00pm on Thursday 11 May, "A Howl to the Moon" protest against the centre was being held at the Lennox Head Surf Club.

xiii) Bulky Waste Collection Service

Lyn Davidson asked for an update on the Council's review of the proposed collection service.

Ballina Shire Council Page 5 of 11

Phil Meehan advised that at this stage Council was not going ahead with either option due to expense and operational issues.

A copy of the report to Council is provided as an attachment for the information of the committee.

xiv) Parking in River Street

Lyn Davidson asked about the parking time zones in River Street, between Moon and Grant Streets and the number of disabled carparks available.

John Truman to provide a response to the CWA.

xv) Alternate CWA Representative

Lyn Davidson advised she would not be able to attend the next two meetings and that Elaine Ballard would be her replacement.

xvi) West End Hall

George Young asked what the timeframe for a response would be.

Post Meeting Note – Matt Woods, Acting Group Manager Strategic and Community Facilities has advised that reports are currently being prepared and are yet to be presented to Council.

xvii) Ballina Lions Club Representative

George Young advised that he was an apology for the July and possibly the September meetings.

xviii) Ballina Chamber of Commerce

Martin Corkery advised that there has been some change to personnel at the Chamber. Nadia Elliott-Burgess is on maternity leave and Leanne Cawley is acting in her role part-time. It was also advised that the Chamber AGM will be held on 17 May 2017.

10. Next Meeting

The next meeting is to be held at 4.00pm on Tuesday 11 July 2017.

11. <u>Meeting Close</u>

There being no further business, the meeting closed at 5.25pm.

Ballina Shire Council Page 6 of 11

Α Α	Ward Meeting Attendance Shee	t – 9 May 2017
Name	Business	Signature
Cr Nathan Willis	Ballina Shire Council	Apology
Cr Phil Meehan	Ballina Shire Council	Med.
Cr Stephen McCarthy	Ballina Shire Council	SM Carty
Cr David Wright	Ballina Shire Council	ABlogy.
Mrs Lyn Davidson	Ballina CWA	L Davidson
Ms Elaine Ballard	Ballina CWA	
Mr George Young	Ballina Lions Club	
Mr Michael Young	Ballina Chamber of Commerce & Ballina Retail Action Group	Apology
Ms Narelle Besseling	Ballina Chamber of Commerce & Ballina Retail Action Group	Apology
Martin Corkery	Ballina Chamber of Commerce & Ballina Retail Action Group	Mother
Ms Margaret Hains	Ballina Day View Club	m M Hain
Ms Marilyn McIntosh	Ballina Evening View Club	harlyw thit sleet
Ms Mary O'Brien	Lighthouse Day Club	Mary O Buen
Mr Pip Carter	St Andrews Ballina	
Mr David Felsch	South Ballina Community Association	AM
Mr Stephen Wills	Ballina Bears Cricket Club	A
Mr Ross Pickering	Ballina & District Citizens & Ratepayers Association	& from
Ms Fiona Folan	Ballina Environment Society	Tel.
Mr John Truman	Group Manager Civil Services	Elitumen.
Ms Joanne Cordery	Civil Services Group	Loone Co

Ballina Shire Council Page 7 of 11

John Truman

From: John Truman

Sent: Tuesday, 9 May 2017 3:53 PM
To: David Felsch (david.rhema@gmail.com)

Subject: FW: Request for Answer - A Ward Meeting next Week

Hello David,

I refer to the following note in the A Ward agenda for the meeting today.

Confirmation of Minutes - 14 March, 2017

A copy of the minutes of the previous meeting held 14 March, 2017 were distributed.

David Felsch has asked that item 9xii) Business without Notice - Ferry be changed as per the following.

"The ferry is being driven at low RPM again. I am concerned it will blow up again in one year as the last one did though glazing and carbon build up. Could I ask that the Council consult with the engine builder as to the optimum RPM to ensure maximum Life. Also no mention was made of the Salt water on burns point Ferry Road."

In relation to this note, as per previous advice, the procedure for operating the ferry (engine revs/speed) has been in place for a long time and has not recently changed with the ferry operated at 1500-1600 rpm. In respect of your position that this operating procedure was the cause of the recent engine failure, I note that over the many years of ferry operation the accumulated engine hours has been the successful benchmark to schedule engine replacements, which have occurred during the annual dry-dock maintenance period. Following a scheduled engine replacement in late 2015, there was an unexpected valve failure in late 2016 however this is the first occurrence of such a problem or major failure of an engine. The procedure for the steady operation of the ferry has to date offered longevity of the whole engine, and also minimised wear and tear on drive and guide parts for the cable runs.

The repair of the ferry engine has been undertaken by Council resources and a specialist engine reconditioning and rebuilding subcontractor (Waggott Engine Services). The initial advice from Waggot's is that the operational engine revs of 1500-1600rpm would not be a cause of glazing or engine failure, however 1000-1100 rpm would be a concern. Waggots report there is some carbon build up in the failed cylinder typical of excess oil consumption, however we are yet to determine what was the probable cause of this on this occasion.

I note at the last meeting you suggested we replace the engine with a smaller engine to ensure it was operating at a capacity to avoid engine glazing. As well as providing drive power for the ferry, the engine supports the hydraulic and electrical systems for the Ferry and therefore any change needs to be carefully considered in light of all the operational requirements. While we did experience the recent problem, as this was the first of its type and having regard to the long and successful operation under the current procedures and engine size, in the absence of any other information we are reluctant to accept the risks associated with an engine change of the type you have suggested. Clearly, if evidence of an ongoing problem is experienced or is likely, that would be a time we would review our position.

Your suggestion at the last meeting also included the need for a Council to employ a diesel mechanic. As noted above, we have access to a specialist sub-contractor who has provided excellent service to Council. The table below summarises the experience and qualifications of our workshop staff, and I would

1

Ballina Shire Council Page 8 of 11

also note most of these staff have extensive corporate knowledge in respect of the maintenance of this engine.

BSC Workshop mechanical staff qualifications and experience:

Qualifications	No.	Years
Automotive HV mechanic	1	10
Motor mechanic	1	23
Mechanical Engineering Cert 3	1	10
Fitting, machining, turning	2	61

In respect of salt water on Burns Point Ferry Road, I confirm Council, for the reasons outlined in the previous agenda, does not propose to change its practice and provide warning signs in respect of salt water on roads unless there is a response requirement in respect of risks to public safety.

I appreciate you may not receive this before the meeting so I will bring hard copies to the meeting and I propose to include a copy in the minutes published after our meeting today.

Regards

John Truman

John Truman Group Manager - Civil Services



ballina.nsw.gov.au | discoverballina.com

Ballina Shire Council Page 9 of 11

4.10 Kerbside Bulky Waste Collection - Assessment

4.10 Kerbside Bulky Waste Collection - Assessment

Delivery Program Waste Management

Objective To provide information on the implementation of a

limited bulky waste kerbside collection and/or drop off

service.

Background

At the 24 November 2016 Ordinary meeting, in response to a notice of motion, Council resolved (in part) as follows:

Resolution 241116/37

That Council receive a report, to be considered during the preparation of the draft 2017/18 Delivery Program, which investigates the implementation and costing of an annual system of (i) kerbside bulky waste pick-up and (ii) free tip drop-off tickets.

The resolution also called for the report to respond to a model proposed in the notice of motion. A copy of the full text of the resolution is provided in attachment one.

The following report addresses the above resolution.

Key Issues

- Providing a user-friendly service for bulky waste
- · Minimising collection and administration costs
- Maximising resource recovery and reducing waste disposal to landfill
- · Identifying and managing key risks.

Information

The purpose of this report is to provide information on the options available to Council to assist residents to dispose of bulky waste. The report examines both options for kerbside collections and options for a tip voucher system for use at the waste management centre.

Overview of Kerbside Collection Programs

- Traditional kerbside clean-up services have included one or more collections of a set quantity of waste per annum
- Waste items are manually loaded into a rear loading truck with compaction to maximise payloads
- Services are provided by area, with residents being provided with advance notice supported by advertising
- Waste collected via kerbside systems cannot be recycled. Some kerbside systems have provided a separate collection for scrap metal to reduce the amount of waste to landfill

Ballina Shire Council 16/03/17 Finance Committee Meeting Page 1

Ballina Shire Council Page 10 of 11

4.10 Kerbside Bulky Waste Collection - Assessment

- Significant problems have arisen with area based collections, including illegal dumping and the inability to control the volume, timing and type of waste put out
- The main community concerns include the unsightliness of piles of waste being left on the kerb for up to a week, illegal dumping, and the dispersion of waste caused by others rummaging through waste piles
- Kerbside collections in rural areas can be problematic as roads and verges are generally too narrow for safe storage and collection
- Average participation rates in our region are in the order of 50-60%, although typically participation declines over time following the introduction of a service.
- Where ongoing problems have occurred, some councils have phased out Shire wide collections and replaced them with a pre-booked collection service or a voucher system.

Overview of Voucher Systems

- Vouchers are provided that entitle the holder to free or subsidised disposal at a waste management facility
- Vouchers take various forms, including the official rates notice and numbered vouchers
- Voucher systems require robust security features so vouchers cannot be duplicated as there are numerous examples where this has occurred
- Vouchers have generally been issued with rates notices. This creates a significant problem for renters, who have an expectation of being entitled to free or subsidised disposal. Some councils have implemented a system where renters can obtain vouchers on request, however this increases administration and disposal costs
- The cost of administration of voucher systems can be significant due to the need to produce and distribute unique vouchers that cannot be copied, and to ensure that the issuing of vouchers is tightly controlled
- Voucher systems provide a lower level of service than kerbside systems as they are not suited to residents who cannot physically manage bulky items or do not have a suitable vehicle to take the waste to the waste management centre
- Participation rates with voucher systems vary. Byron Shire has an average uptake of 16%. Average participation rates are generally less than 50%
- Numerous Councils have implemented on-line systems to reduce administration costs, improve customer service and control duplication of vouchers.

Proposed Services Arrangements

Council staff have reviewed the information provided as part of resolution 241116/37 and also undertaken a review of a number of existing kerbside and voucher systems across NSW.

Given the considerable problems with illegal dumping and the inability to safely service rural areas, a traditional area based kerbside collection program has not been considered.

Due to administration costs and misuse via duplication of vouchers, a traditional paper based voucher system has not been considered.

Ballina Shire Council 16/03/17 Finance Committee Meeting Page 2

Ballina Shire Council Page 11 of 11

4.10 Kerbside Bulky Waste Collection - Assessment

The two service options recommended for consideration include a pre-booked kerbside collection program, and an electronic voucher system.

Only residential properties that receive a garbage collection service will be eligible to utilise the voucher system (currently approximately 16,200 services). This service is not provided for vacant allotment clearing, commercial or trade waste, or general farm clean-ups.

Option 1 Pre-booked Kerbside Bulky Pickup Service

The kerbside bulky waste pickup service is based on the following model:

- The kerbside pickup service is limited to one collection per financial year per residence
- The proposed co-payment is \$40 per collection or \$20 per pensioner collection, to be paid through the Council office
- Once payment is received, a collection day will be arranged with our designated contractor
- Collection quantities will be limited to a maximum of 2 m³ or 150 kg
- Single items must not exceed 1.8 m in length and must be easily lifted by two persons
- An information sheet will be provided to residents to clarify what will be collected
- Accept household items only such as:
 - furniture
 - small white goods (eg washing machine, dryer, bar fridge)
 - electrical appliances
- A list of items not accepted to be developed, which will include:
 - asbestos
 - builder's waste
 - o bulk motor vehicle parts
 - liquid waste
 - green waste
 - household garbage
 - o tvres
 - o commercial, industrial or farm waste
 - o hazardous waste (e.g. chemicals, paints, batteries)
- Any material placed on the kerbside without a co-payment service booking, or placed after the material has been collected will be treated as illegally dumped and appropriate compliance action will be taken.

Option 2 Free tip drop-off voucher

The free tip drop-off voucher is based on the following model:

- Provision of one free tip voucher per residence for the disposal of up to 2 m³ or 150 kg of permitted waste per financial year
- A unique bar coded voucher will be available per household by applying online. People without internet access or an email address can obtain a waste voucher by visiting the Council office. Provisions will exist to allow tenants to participate in the scheme
- Restrictions will be placed on what materials can be disposed ie
 - no liquid or asbestos waste
 - o no chemicals

Ballina Shire Council 16/03/17

Finance Committee Meeting Page 3

Ballina Shire Council Page 12 of 11

4.10 Kerbside Bulky Waste Collection - Assessment

- o no building materials or
- tyres
- An information sheet will be provided to residents to clarify what is acceptable material, and
- All material brought to the Ballina Waste Management transfer station must be disposed in accordance with waste separation requirements.

Comparison of Pre-booked Kerbside Collection and Voucher Systems

Selection criteria (listed below) have been developed to assist Council in determining its preferred service model for bulky waste.

- Provides assistance for residents that do not have a suitable vehicle to transport bulky waste
- Minimises storage of waste at the kerb reducing illegal dumping and other impacts
- · Minimises collection costs per household
- · Minimises administration costs
- Maximising resource recovery and reducing waste disposal to landfill
- · Minimises financial, environmental and operational risks
- Provides access for both ratepayers and tenants

A comparison of the two collection systems against the key objectives is provided below.

Criteria	Kerbside Collection	Voucher System
Assist residents without a suitable vehicle to transport bulky waste	Convenient kerbside service	Residents are required to transport their waste. Council can provide free trailer hire to assist those without a suitable vehicle
Minimises storage of waste at the kerb	Pre-booked system minimises time at the kerb, however some dumping problems would be expected	Does not require kerbside storage
Minimises collection costs	Council funds collection	No collection costs
Minimises administration costs	Additional costs of managing logistics of pre- booked collections to be borne by Council	An online portal and electronic voucher system would minimise administration costs
Maximising resource recovery and reducing waste disposal to landfill	Very difficult and cost prohibitive to separate waste under the typical contractor model. Majority of waste will require disposal.	Condition of participation in voucher system to keep wastes separate from reusable or recyclable material to reduce disposal costs.
Minimises financial, environmental and operational risks	Some inherent risks with placement of waste on public land. Pre-booked collections mitigates significant risks	Unique barcoded vouchers can prevent duplication of vouchers and control costs. Activities at the waste management centre can be controlled to manage risks
Provides access for both ratepayers and tenants	The kerbside pickup system would be available to urban service areas only	The proposed voucher program (used by Lismore Council) demonstrates that a workable booking system that provides access for both

Ballina Shire Council 16/03/17 Finance Committee Meeting Page 4

Ballina Shire Council Page 13 of 11

4.10 Kerbside Bulky Waste Collection - Assessment

Criteria	Kerbside Collection	Voucher System
		ratepayers and renters can be developed
Minimises the resource requirements at the waste management centre	Existing systems are in place for management of bulk loads. Some additional resources will be required for load out of waste for disposal	Marginal increase in self haul customers however more resource intensive to inspect loads and dispose of more bulky waste.

State and Regional Snapshot

Most Sydney Metropolitan Councils and the surrounding councils such as Wollongong, Central Coast, Blue Mountains and Lithgow provide usually two pre-booked collection services per year.

All bulky waste services had similar constraints on what material was eligible for collection including size and maximum volume.

Neighbouring Council Comparison

The following Table summarises the range of bulky waste collection services provided by neighbouring Councils.

Council	Service provided	Specifics
Byron Shire Council	1 free drop off at the landfill per year (show rates notice)	150 kg of waste or up to 500 kg of garden waste
Clarence Valley Council	1 annual Household Council Collection service	2 m³ per household. Significant problems controlling the volume and type of waste put out.
Kyogle Council	No service	N/A
Lismore City Council	3 vouchers per year per household Courtesy trailer available Pick up service available for a fee	Maximum volumes of: • 200 kg of mixed general waste (not sortable) • 333 kg of self-sort waste (50% recoverable) • 714 kg of green waste • 1.6 tonne of scrap steel • One gassed whitegood or two un-gassed whitegoods • Five car/4x4 tyres or one truck tyre
Richmond Valley Council	No service	N/A
Tweed Shire Council	Last kerbside clean up in May 2017 Will be switching to 2 on-call clean-ups per year	Max 1 m³ per clean-up

Ballina Shire Council 16/03/17 Finance Committee Meeting Page 5

Ballina Shire Council Page 14 of 11

4.10 Kerbside Bulky Waste Collection - Assessment

Legal / Resource / Financial Implications

<u>Legal Implications</u>
The NSW EPA (2014) NSW Waste Avoidance and Resource Recovery Strategy, 2014-21 sets out a number of key strategies to reduce waste. Councils and achieve target rates by 2021-22. The key strategies that are relevant to this report include:

- Increase recycling rates for municipal solid waste to 70%
- Increase the waste to be diverted from landfill to 75%; and
- Reduce illegal dumping

To achieve the required resource recovery targets set by the NSW Government, some form of waste sorting will be required.

The NSW EPA have outlined a range of proposed reforms that will have significant impacts on all waste streams, especially with the proposed repeal of the proximity principle for transported waste.

Currently, Ballina Shire's waste can be transported lawfully to Queensland as we are located within 150 kilometres of the NSW border. The transported waste levy is charged to all material that enters the landfill (current rate \$78.20/Tonne). A waste levy rebate can be claimed once waste leaves the landfill and is lawfully disposed.

Proposed changes to the Protection of the Environment Operations (Waste) Regulation 2014 (the Waste Regulation) will mean that we will be entitled to claim the transported waste levy only for material being sent to another facility for processing or resource recovery.

If this regulation is passed, Council will need to allocate funds to pay the transported waste levy on the bulky waste, as it would be sent offsite for landfill disposal. This is estimated to be potentially as high as \$190,000 depending on the take of collection service.

Other proposed changes to the Waste Regulations relate to improving landfill performance and the ability to recovery or process waste. It may become an offence to send a mixed load from a facility if they can lawfully accept that waste (\$15,000 fines apply). A mixed load could be defined as a mattress and scrap metal such as a washing machine in the same load.

A possible consequence of this requirement may be the need to undertake resource recovery and sorting on this bulky waste and have larger storage areas on site for separate waste streams until load volumes are achieved. Any waste storage area would require adequate bunding and potential leachate collection systems incorporated into the design. While levy costs would be avoided, handling and infrastructure costs will be incurred.

It is the experience of other councils of illegal dumping occurring in the street, often in periods immediately following a collection service. Material stored on the nature strip is the responsibility of Council. Currently dumped or orphan waste is removed by Civil Services staff. Ownership of material must be proved before Council can fine individuals for illegal dumping.

Ballina Shire Council 16/03/17

Finance Committee Meeting Page 6

Ballina Shire Council Page 15 of 11

4.10 Kerbside Bulky Waste Collection - Assessment

Council compliance staff has suggested that the material is stored within the resident's front yard for collection to avoid risk to the public and to clarify responsibility of waste until it is collected. This will obviate the need for Council Rangers to investigate the matter as an illegal dumping incident. There would be other risks associated with contractors removing waste from within the property.

Resource Implications

It is expected that frontline service staff such as customer service, weighbridge operators, and waste management officers will incur increased customer volumes with the introduction of this bulky waste collection service.

If a bar coded voucher system is adopted, the software and associated hardware (computer and bar code scanner) similar to that used at the Lismore Recycling and Recovery Centre would be required to identify the authenticity of each voucher and prevent multiple visits. Those without internet access can either utilise the computer in the foyer of Council or apply in person with customer service personnel.

Those residents who require a Council kerbside pick-up service will need to pre-book this service. The current model for the pre-booked kerbside pick-up service is based upon residents visiting Council to pay and book this service.

Currently Council cannot administer payments over the phone or online. Establishing an E-service portal will be necessary to enable customers to book and (if required) pay for services online that would significantly reduce the reliance on customer service staff.

A range of information fact sheets will need to be developed outlining the items that will be eligible for collection. Alternative disposal options will be provided for a range of common waste types. This will include education to encourage consumers to be responsible for the whole life cycle of a product by utilising existing services such as the removal of old mattresses or whitegoods for a nominal fee.

Council does not possess the equipment or resources to undertake the bulky waste kerbside pick-up service. Council could purchase a trailer for residents to use in conjunction with their waste voucher to assist with transportation to the landfill.

A kerbside collection service is likely to be undertaken by a sub-contractor. Council will need to determine whether the collection priority is maximising collection efficiencies or maximising sorting/resource recovery capacity.

Contractors who provide this type of service both locally and nationally typically utilise a rear loading truck that undergoes some compaction. No resource recovery work is typically undertaken on this waste stream.

The required collection rates are 50 properties per day, hence a lead time of 4-6 weeks may be required to achieve these operating efficiencies.

Ballina Shire Council 16/03/17 Finance Committee Meeting Page 7

Ballina Shire Council Page 16 of 11

4.10 Kerbside Bulky Waste Collection - Assessment

Financial Implications

The cost to implement the bulky waste collection service has not been included in the 2017/2018 budget to date. The following estimates are provided for Council's consideration.

Tip voucher - drop off system

The anticipated annual cost to implement the free tip voucher drop off service for all eligible 16,200 services is outlined as follows:

Item	Cost
Initial set up costs	
Computer software, hardware and training (for vouchers)	\$9,200
Community education, print media	\$25,000
Purchase a trailer (for residents to use)	\$7,000
Sub total	\$41,200
Ongoing annual costs	
Administration processing	\$26,000
Waste fees for handling, transportation and disposal to landfill (based on 2,430 T @ \$225/T)	\$546,000
Sub total	\$572,000
Total	\$613,200

The above cost is based on a voucher utilisation of 100% and assumes the maximum annual volume of waste collected will not exceed 2,430 tonnes (150 kg per 16,200 households).

Assuming a similar participation rate to other Councils (50% utilisation), the cost would be likely to range between \$334,075 and \$613,950 per year.

Kerbside Pick Up System

The costs for the drop off system will incur all the charges associated with the voucher system as residents will use their vouchers for free landfill disposal.

Final costs for the pre-book pick up system will depend on the preferred collection methodology for bulky waste. The method outlined is based on a co-payment of \$40/ \$20 pensioner. A contractor pick-up fee has been estimated at \$55 per property. On this basis, Council will incur the cost difference of between \$15 to \$35 per pick-up depending on whether the pick-up is for a pensioner or non-pensioner.

Council would need to fund the short fall of \$247,815 per year (calculated on 2,100 pensioners and 11,621 non pensioner residents eligible for this service in the urban area).

Therefore the indicative cost for pickup and disposal of bulky waste would be expected to range between \$457,990 (50% utilisation) and \$861,765 (100% utilisation) for the pick-up system.

Ballina Shire Council 16/03/17 Finance Committee Meeting Page 8

Ballina Shire Council Page 17 of 11

4.10 Kerbside Bulky Waste Collection - Assessment

Risk

The kerbside collection service although convenient and preferable to a scheduled area based clean up collection is an expensive service that is likely to benefit a small portion of the Shire.

Once such a system has been introduced, it will be extremely difficult to cease such a service. Council would need to be prepared to make an ongoing commitment to continue to fund this project.

There remains a risk that proposed changes to waste legislation will be introduced that will prevent Council being able to claim the transported waste levy. This will incur an additional \$190,026 cost to this scheme.

Further investigation should be undertaken if this model is to be considered for adoption to resolve ongoing issues such as:

- the potential for problematic waste to enter the environment as a result of poor storage on the kerbside;
- · the risk of public injury for pedestrians;
- the inability to service rural areas;
- service delays (potentially 4-6 weeks) in providing this service; and
- the lack of capacity to perform resource recovery under the typical model.

Consultation

Internal and external consultation was undertaken during the development of this report.

Council staff consulted with staff at Tweed Shire, Byron Shire, Lismore City and Port Macquarie-Hastings Councils.

Extensive consultation was undertaken with a range of Ballina Shire Council departments in an attempt to identify operational limitations and develop acceptable alternatives.

Options

Council has the option to accept or reject the proposal to implement a bulky waste collection service as proposed in the notice of motion. If the Council elects to proceed, Council has the option of a free tip drop off system, a kerbside collection, or both.

There is no doubt many residents make requests for this service and this is reflected by the number of times this has been debated by Council in the past. However, the reality is the service is not free and the costs would result in significant budget impacts as per the details in the above report. Importantly, there is also the concern that the participation rates mean the costs of this service represent a cross subsidy between residents.

While it is accepted that public taxation and rating principles involve cross subsidies to support the overall health and wellbeing of a community, typically these cross subsidies occur where it is not reasonable to apply user pays principles.

Ballina Shire Council 16/03/17 Finance Committee Meeting Page 9

Ballina Shire Council Page 18 of 11

4.10 Kerbside Bulky Waste Collection - Assessment

The existing arrangements provide pay for use at the landfill, or pay to collect and haul where a resident does not have the capacity to complete such a task. As well as being equitable, the existing arrangements overall represent the most efficient expenditure and least cost to the community for this service.

Council is also reminded this type of service, unless supported by extensive waste sorting and separation processes at the landfill is essentially inconsistent with Council's resource recovery and landfill avoidance programs on the basis a kerbside collection provided by Council without fees and charges does not encourage residents to consider recycling, resale and other waste diversion activities.

Council should also be mindful of the risks noted in this report in relation to the unconfirmed, yet proposed, legislative changes which will have a significant impact on the financial and operational considerations for such a service.

The risks to the environment and neighbourhood amenity from the kerbside service have also been articulated in the report and are the key reasons why a number of councils have sought to terminate their involvement in this type of service.

If the Council is of the mind to implement a scheme, it is noted a trial is not considered a possible option for two reasons. Firstly, the establishment costs for either the voucher system or the kerbside service are significant. Secondly, irrespective of the effectiveness of a service, it is often very difficult for Council to withdraw a service once it is in place on a temporary or permanent basis.

Therefore, if the Council does prefer to proceed, it is suggested that Council establish in principle support only at this point in time and request a further report examining the costs, risks and logistics in more detail. As this is not the recommendation to this report a suggested resolution for this direction would be:

- That Council record its in principle support for the introduction of a kerbside bulky waste collection service and/or a free landfill drop off system generally in accordance with the proposals in the attachment to this report.
- That Council defer the implementation of the scheme proposed in point one above until;
 - a) Council receives another report assessing in further detail the cost estimates, system and infrastructure establishment requirements, and the operational risks associated with the scheme.
 - b) The proposed amendments to the NSW Waste Regulations have been confirmed.

Having regard to the comments above in respect of the costs and risks associated with this proposal, and based on the availability of an existing alternate, economically and environmentally efficient method for dealing with this community need, the recommendation from staff is not to proceed with either a bulky waste collection service or free landfill drop off system.

Ballina Shire Council 16/03/17 Finance Committee Meeting Page 10

Ballina Shire Council Page 19 of 11

4.10 Kerbside Bulky Waste Collection - Assessment

RECOMMENDATIONS

- That based on the contents of this report Council resolves not to proceed with the introduction of either a bulky waste collection service or free landfill drop off system.
- That Council records the reasons for its decision in point one above including:
 - The financial impact to Council is significant and would result in increased waste charges.
 - The proposal is inconsistent with Council's objectives for waste recovery and landfill diversion.
 - The proposal is inconsistent with the emerging regulatory regime for waste management.
 - Residents are able to access the landfill on a user pays system and local contractors and other service providers are able to assist residents with collection and haulage of bulky goods.
 - For the kerbside collection, there are significant risks associated with environmental pollution, scavenging, residential amenity and illegal dumping.
 - The programs require significant additional resources to establish and implement.

Attachment(s)

Resolution from 24 November 2016

Ballina Shire Council 16/03/17 Finance Committee Meeting Page 11

Ballina Shire Council Page 20 of 11

4.10 Kerbside Bulky Waste Collection - Assessment.DOC

241116/37 RESOLVED

(Cr Phillip Meehan/Cr Eoin Johnston)

That Council receive a report, to be considered during the preparation of the draft 2017/18 Delivery Program, which investigates the implementation and costing of an annual system of (i) kerbside bulky waste pick-up and (ii) free tip drop-off tickets.

That the report be based upon the following model and any other viable model

Kerbside bulky waste pick-up.

- A limited co-payment service available for kerbside collection of bulky waste (2 cubic metres), equivalent to the size of a small trailer.
- Available to each residence once per year.
- Booked through the Council office.
- A cost of \$40 per collection / Aged pensioners \$20. Must be paid the week before the service through the Council office.
- Pick up days each week to be determined. Requests for a collection close at 3pm the Friday before.
- Accept household items only such as:
 - o Furniture
 - o small white goods (eg washing machine, dryer, bar fridge)
 - electrical appliances
 - any single item capable of being easily lifted by two persons
- A list of items not accepted to be developed, which may include:
 - builder's waste
 - bulk motor vehicle parts
 - o green waste
 - household garbage
 - o tyres
 - o industrial or farm wasto
 - o hazardous waste (e.g. chemicals, paints)

Any waste placed on the kerbside without a co-payment service booking will be treated as illegally dumped and appropriate compliance action to be taken.

The kerbside collection may be operated by Council staff or a contractor

Free tip drop-off tickets.

- Each domestic waste rategayer to receive one (1) free tip ticket that can be used to drop off items to Council's waste facility (2 cubic metres) equivalent to the size of a small trailer.
- The ticket to be sent out with the annual rates notice
- Each ticket to have a unique number so multiple copies will not be accepted.
- The drop off material may be green waste or mixed waste.
- A list of waste not accepted to be developed.
- The waste may have a weight limit (as well as volume).

Further community information and education occur about items that can be cropped off for free at the Council waste facility and the regional waste facility at Lismone.

Further community information and education occur about recycling confractors (eg. metal) that may pick up waste from households.

Cr Ban Smith returned to the meeting at 04:53 pm.

FOR VOTE - Cr Phillip Meshan, Cr Eoin Johnston, Cr Stephen McCarthy, Cr Nathan Willis and Cr Keith Williams

AGAINST VOTE - Cr David Wright, Cr Jeff Johnson, Cr Sharon Cadwallader and Cr Ben Smith ABSENT, DID NOT VOTE - Cr Sharon Pany

Attachment 1 Page 12

Ballina Shire Council Page 21 of 11

Ballina Shire Council		
For Action Item - Kerbside Bulky Waste Collection - Assessment		
MEETING:	Finance Committee Meeting of 16/03/2017	

A Motion was moved Cr Sharon Cadwallader and seconded by Cr Keith Williams

- That based on the contents of this report Council resolves not to proceed with the introduction of either a bulky waste collection service or free landfill drop off system.
- 2. That Council records the reasons for its decision in point one above including:
 - The financial impact to Council is significant and would result in increased waste charges.
 - The proposal is inconsistent with Council's objectives for waste recovery and landfill diversion.
 - The proposal is inconsistent with the emerging regulatory regime for waste management.
 - Residents are able to access the landfill on a user pays system and local contractors and other service providers are able to assist residents with collection and haulage of bulky goods.
 - For the kerbside collection, there are significant risks associated with environmental pollution, scavenging, residential amenity and illegal dumping.
 - · The programs require significant additional resources to establish and implement.

An Amendment was moved by Cr Phillip Meehan and seconded by Cr Jeff Johnson

 That Council receive a report on option two, being the provision of one free tip voucher per residential property per year.

FOR VOTE - Cr Phillip Meehan and Cr Jeff Johnson
AGAINST VOTE - Cr David Wright, Cr Sharon Parry, Cr Eoin Johnston, Cr Stephen
McCarthy, Cr Nathan Willis, Cr Keith Williams and Cr Sharon Cadwallader
ABSENT. DID NOT VOTE - Cr Ben Smith

The Amendment was LOST

Ballina Shire Council Page 22 of 11